Habitat for Humanity of North Central CT
Board Meeting, April 9, 2025
5:30pm -7:30pm

AGENDA

Devotion
990 and Audited Financials Presentation by CLA
Consent Agenda
Board Committee Updates
= ReStore Task Force
= Governance- Board Nomination
= Development Committee
Operations Updates (Karraine Moody)
e Volunteer Appreciation
e Burnside Dedication
e Public Funds Update

Executive Session



2025

Board of Directors
Meetings

Finance & Exec

Development

Agenda/Comments

January Tuesday, January 14 Thursday, January 23
February Tuesday, February 4 Tuesday, February 18 2025 Kickoff
March Tuesday, March 18 Thursday, March 27
April Wednesday, April 9 Tuesday, April 15 ReStore Vote
May Tuesday, May 20 Thursday, May 22
June Tuesday, June 3 Tuesday, June 17 Budget Review and
Proposal for FY26
July Tuesday, July 15 Thursday, July 24
September | Tuesday, September 2 Tuesday, September 16 Thursday, September 25
October Tuesday, October 7 Tuesday, October 14
November Tuesday, November 11 Tuesday, November 18 Thursday, November 20 290 :::t;i\’iew
December | Tuesday, December 2

Tuesday, December 16

Year in Review




AUDIT REVIEW

M



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL
CONNECTICUT, INC,

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
~ ‘ CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
Hartford, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, and the

related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc., as of June 30, 2024, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Habitat for Humanity North
Central Connecticut, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1, during the year ended June 30, 2024, Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc. adopted new accounting guidance for current expected credit losses. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

ndependent network member of CLA Glabal. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
(1



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Habitat for Humanity North
Central Connecticut, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.’s internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

2



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 18,
2025, on our consideration of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Habitat
for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Matter

The 2023 financial statements of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. were audited by
other auditors whose report dated October 24, 2023 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements.

Wx/mm% o

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

West Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2025

(3)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 457,651 $ 2,299,114
Accounts Receivable 104,349 57,485
Grants Receivable 442 531 -
Current Portion of Mortgage Notes Receivable 580,912 588,725
Allowance for Credit Losses (119,312) -
Inventory 3,779,511 682,794
Prepaid Expenses 50,849 95,742
Total Current Assets 5,296,491 3,723,860
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land, Building, and Improvements 527,868 516,265
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment 1,331,453 1,331,453
Total 1,859,321 1,847,718
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,365,909 1,283,281
Property and Equipment, Net 493,412 564,437
OTHER ASSETS
Mortgage Notes Receivable, Net 3,866,876 4,333,664
Operating Right-of-Use Asset 1,167,830 715,721
Security Deposits 6,000 14,500
Total Other Assets 5,040,706 5,063,885
Total Assets $ 10,830,609 $ 9352182
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt $ 62,548 $ 72,521
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 266,505 604,594
Current Portion of Operating Lease Liabilities 184,283 121,292
Total Current Liabilities 513,336 798,407
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 458,135 538,194
Long-Term Portion of Operating Lease Liabilities 891,668 594,429
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,349,803 1,132,623
Total Liabilities 1,863,139 1,931,030
NET ASSETS
Without Donor Restrictions 8,852,687 7,379,055
With Donor Restrictions 114,783 42,097
Total Net Assets 8,967,470 7,421,152
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 10,830,609 $ 9,352,182

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grants $ 1,817,560 $ - $ 1,817,560
Contributions 1,995,599 114,783 2,110,382
Imputed Interest on Mortgage Receivables 207 432 - 207,432
ReStore Income 1,370,793 - 1,370,793
Other Income 1,008 - 1,008
Interest Income 537 - 537
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 42,097 (42,097) =
Total Revenue, Support, and Gains 5,435,026 72,686 5,507,712
EXPENSES
Program Services:
Affordable Housing Program 1,658,736 - 1,658,736
ReStore 1,462,149 - 1,462,149
Total Program Services 3,120,885 - 3,120,885
General and Administrative 359,728 - 359,728
Fundraising 480,781 - 480,781
Total Expenses 3,961,394 - 3,961,394
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,473,632 72,686 1,546,318
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 7,379,055 42,097 7,421,152
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 8,852,687 $ 114,783 $ 8,967,470

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
REVENUE AND OTHER SUPPORT
Property Transferred to Homeowners $ 2,192,055 $ - $ 2,192,055
Grants 499,171 - 499,171
Contributions 1,410,488 35,000 1,445,488
Imputed Interest on Mortgage Receivables 312,587 - 312,587
ReStore Income 1,322,943 - 1,322,943
Other Income 9,204 - 9,204
Interest Income 541 - 541
Gain on Sale of Mortgages 52,341 - 52,341
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 10,800 (10,800) -
Total Revenue, Support, and Gains 5,810,130 24,200 5,834,330
EXPENSES
Program Services:
Affordable Housing Program 4,220,578 4,220,578
ReStore 1,380,710 - 1,380,710
Total Program Services 5,601,288 - 5,601,288
General and Administrative 750,951 - 750,951
Fundraising 444 661 - 444,661
Total Expenses 6,796,900 - 6,796,900
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (986,770) 24,200 (962,570)
Net Assets - Beginning of Year 8,365,825 17,897 8,383,722
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 7,379,055 $ 42,097 $ 7,421,152

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

(6)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Services

Affordable Total
Housing Program General and Total
Program ReStore Services Administrative  Fundraising Expenses
Cost of Homes and Goeds Sold 5 19,074 § 132,768 § 151,842 § - 8§ - § 151,842
Other Expenses:
Salaries 794,379 494,226 1,288,605 90,096 122,904 1,501,605
Payroll Taxes and Fringe Benefits 241,246 183,097 424,343 34,802 38,028 497,173
Occupancy Expenses 85,131 205,936 291,067 15,496 2,356 308,919
Special Events 3,968 197 4,165 5,547 235,491 245,203
Moving and Storage - 233,143 233,143 - - 233,143
Professional Fees 107,206 8,890 116,096 33,784 27,929 177,809
Office Administration 75,883 24,802 100,685 8,140 7,461 116,286
Miscellaneous 87,055 4,723 91,778 14,896 7,586 114,260
Insurance 35,417 18,986 54,403 8,839 6,519 69,761
Bank and Credit Card Fees 13,729 44,837 58,566 8,146 1,172 67,884
Utilities and Telephone 17,264 30,679 47,943 427 - 48,370
Auto and Travel 28,344 10,415 38,759 5,459 1,275 45,493
Advertising 5,130 1,361 6,491 1,927 29,349 37,767
Other Program Service Costs 25,412 - 25412 - - 25,412
Tithe and Donations to Affiliates 25,095 - 25,095 - 5 25,100
Warranty Costs 22,984 - 22,984 - - 22,984
Interest 8,094 - 8,094 3,469 - 11,563
Training and Staff Development 5,562 1,987 7,549 1,125 706 9,380
Total Other Expenses 1,581,899 1,263,279 2,845,178 232,153 480,781 3,558,112
Total Expenses Before
Provision for Mortgage
Notes Receivable Losses
Mortgage Discount and
Depreciation/Amortization 1,600,973 1,396,047 2,997,020 232,153 480,781 3,709,954
Provision for Mortgage Notes
Receivable Losses - - - 119,312 - 119,312
Mortgage Discount 49,500 - 49,500 - - 49,500
Depreciation/Amortization 8,263 66,102 74,365 8,263 - 82,628
Total Expenses $ 1658736 _$ 1462149 _$ 3120885 _§ 359728 _§ 480781 _$ 3,961,394

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

@)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Program Services

Affordable Total
Housing Program General and Total
Program ReStore Services Administrative  Fundraising Expenses
Cost of Homes and Goods Sold $ 2527370 % 74061 $ 2601431 $ - 8 - % 2,601,431
Other Expenses:

Salaries 507,796 466,729 974,525 276,540 150,409 1,401,474
Payroll Taxes and Fringe Benefits 147,045 176,436 323,481 120,076 48,762 492,319
Occupancy Expenses 31,046 208,796 239,842 44,576 2,346 286,764
Special Events 5,823 - 5,823 5,567 151,861 163,251
Moving and Storage - 243,112 243,112 - - 243,112
Professional Fees 15,350 10,578 25,928 153,524 32,764 212,216
Office Administration 16,447 26,498 42,945 57,844 5,706 106,495
Miscellaneous 6,220 3,209 9,429 18,400 980 28,809
Insurance 32,247 18,317 50,564 6,613 6,396 83,573
Bank and Credit Card Fees 23 33,502 33,525 21,559 1,202 56,286
Utilities and Telephone 17,981 32,407 50,388 - - 50,388
Auto and Travel 17,849 3,782 21,631 14,031 770 36,432
Advertising 16,524 5,034 21,558 5,440 42,681 69,679
Other Program Service Costs 13,892 - 13,892 28 506 14,426
Tithe and Donations to Affiliates 30,593 - 30,593 - 58 30,651
Warranty Costs 12,199 - 12,199 - - 12,199
Interest - - - 12,822 - 12,822
Training and Staff Development 6,066 9 6,075 4,177 220 10,472
Total Other Expenses 877,101 1,228,409 2,105,510 741,197 444,661 3,291,368

Total Expenses Before

Mortgage Discount and

Depreciation/Amortization 3,404,471 1,302,470 4,706,941 741,197 444,661 5,892,799
Mortgage Discount 804,667 - 804,667 - - 804,667
Depreciation/Amortization 11,440 78,240 89,680 9,754 - 99,434
Total Expenses $ 4220578 $ 1380710 _§ 5601288 $ 750951 $ 444661 _$ 6,796,900

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

8)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in Net Assets
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Mortgage Discount
Amortization of Note Discounts
Provision for Mortgage Notes Receivable Losses
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Grants Receivable
Inventory
Security Deposits
Prepaid Expenses
Right of Use Asset
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
New Loans Originated
Loan Payments
Proceeds from Sale of Mortgages
Change in Other Real Estate Owned
Purchases of Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Notes Payable
Payments on Note payable
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING

AND FINANCING ACTIVITY

Mortgage Discount

Imputed Interest on Mortgage Receivables
Total

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

9

2024 2023

$ 1,546,318 (962,570)
82,628 99,434
(207,432) 116,755
49,500 -
119,312 -
(46,864) (9,711)
(442,531) £
(3,096,717) 376,358
8,500 -
44,893 (37,743)
(91,879) 4
(338,089) 294,925
(2,372,361) (122,552)
- (329,731)

682,033 652,483

- 525,135

" 141,352

{11,603) 23,112
670,430 1,012,351

= 3,050
(139,532) (65,576)
(139,532) (62,526)
(1,841,463) 827,273
2,299,114 1,471,841

$ 457 651 2,299,114
$ 11,563 12,822
$ - 804,667
- (312,587)

$ - 492,080




NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. (the Organization), a nonprofit
organization, nonstock corporation organized under Connecticut law in 1988, is located in
Hartford, Connecticut. The Organization, affiliated with Habitat for Humanity International
(HFHI) based in Americus, Georgia, builds homes for low-income individuals in the Hartford
and Tolland area. Purchasers, who have been approved and selected by the Organization,
volunteer their labor in partnership with the Organization to build the house. The house is
then sold to the individual at a predetermined cost which is reviewed annually by the
Organization. Upon sale, the Organization takes back a noninterest-bearing mortgage for
approximately 99% of the sales price. These mortgages are usually long term, ranging from
20 to 30 years.

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, the Organization reports information
regarding its financial position and activities according to the following classes of net assets:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — These net assets are defined as assets that are
free of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions — These net assets include contributions,
unconditional promises to give and other inflows of assets whose use by the
Organization is limited by donor-imposed stipulations that either expire by the passage
of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the Organization. Other net assets
with donor restrictions may be perpetual in nature. There are no net assets with
restrictions in perpetuity as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

At the beginning of the fiscal year, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected credit losses. The
Organization adopted this new guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition
method. The adoption of this standard changed how the allowance for credit losses is
determined.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(10)



NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three
months or less. The Organization maintains its cash in bank accounts which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such
accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable arising from regular operations are stated net of an allowance for credit
losses. Allowances are set based on assessments by management as to the collectability of
individual accounts. There was no allowance for credit losses as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Mortgages Receivable

Mortgages receivable balances represent the amount charged to the homeowners for
Habitat houses built and are to be paid back over an established and mutually agreed period
of time. These mortgages are typically paid back on a monthly basis. At the same time the
first mortgage is signed, a second lien mortgage is executed by the homeowner, reflecting
the difference between the purchase price and the fair market value of the house. This
second mortgage, also known as a “silent mortgage,” is a legal document executed for
protection against homeowners who may sell their house for a profit before the mortgage is
paid off and to protect the homeowner by preventing predatory lenders from paying off the
first mortgage and saddling the homeowners with an onerous new mortgage.

The Organization's mortgages are noninterest-bearing and have been discounted to present
value based upon prevailing market rates for low-income housing at the inception of the
mortgages. Habitat For Humanity International, Inc. (HFHI) develops a discount rate once a
year on June 30. The difference between the face amount of the mortgage and its present
value is accounted for as a discount that is recorded on the statement of financial position
as a contra account to Mortgages Receivable and amortized over the life of the mortgage
using the straight-line method. The effect of discounting on the financial statements results
in Mortgages Receivable being reduced by the discount amount as the expense is
increased. HFHI recommends that mortgage discounts be charged as a program services
expense to a Mortgage Discount Expense account and each year a ratable amount of the
discount be amortized to a Mortgage Discount Amortization revenue account. For practical
purposes, delinquent or prepaid mortgage payments are not adjusted in the annual
amortization. However, mortgage payoffs or foreclosures do result in the remaining
Unamortized Discount balance being closed and recorded to a Mortgage Discount Revenue
account.

The Organization’s policy for determining when mortgages are past due or delinquent is

based on how recently payments have been received. Mortgages are considered past due
15 days after the due date.

(1



NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Mortgages Receivable (Continued)

The opening and closing balances of the Organization’s contract receivables, which are
recognized within accounts receivable and mortgage notes receivable on the statements of
financial position are as follows:

Contract Balances

Accounts Mortgage Notes

Receivable Receivable
Opening (July 1, 2023) $ 57,485 $ 4,922,389
Closing (June 30, 2024) 104,349 4,447,788
Increase (Decrease) 3 46,864 $ (474,601)
Opening (July 1, 2022) $ 47,774 $ 5,934,955
Closing (June 30, 2023) 57,485 4,922,389
Increase (Decrease) 3 9,711 $ (1,012,566)

Allowance for Credit Losses on Mortgages

Effective, July 1, 2023, the allowance for credit losses on mortgages is a valuation account
that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of mortgages to present the net amount
expected to be collected. The allowance for credit losses on mortgages is adjusted through
the provision for credit losses to the amount of amortized cost basis not expected to be
collected at the balance sheet date. Mortgage losses are charged off against the allowance
for credit losses on mortgages when the Organization determines the mortgage balance to
be uncollectible. Cash received on previously charged off amounts is recorded as a
recovery to the allowance for credit losses on mortgages.

The measurement of expected credit losses encompasses information about historical
events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. Historical credit loss
experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit losses. Qualitative
adjustments to historical loss information are made for differences in current loan-specific
risk characteristics such as differences in underwriting standards, portfolio mix, current
information and events, probable that the Organization will be unable to collect the
scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of
the loan agreements, or delinquencies.

The allowance for credit losses on mortgages estimate incorporates a reasonable and
supportable economic forecast through the use of historical losses adjusted for current
factors.

(12)



NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allowance for Credit Losses on Mortgages (Continued)

The Organization only has one portfolio segment. The risk characteristics of this segment
are as follows:

The degree of risk in 1-4 family lending depends primarily on the note amount in relation
to collateral value, the interest rate and the borrower's ability to repay in an orderly
fashion. These notes generally possess a lower inherent risk of loss than other real
estate portfolio segments. Economic trends determined by unemployment rates and
other key economic indicators are closely correlated to the credit quality of these notes.
Weak economic trends indicate that the borrowers’ capacity to repay their obligations
may be deteriorating.

Although management believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary
from its estimates. On a yearly basis, the Organization reviews the adequacy of the
allowance, including consideration of the relevant risks in the portfolio, current economic
conditions and other factors. If management determines that changes are warranted based
on those reviews, the allowance is adjusted. Prior to the adoption of ASC 326, the
Organization used an incurred loss model to measure an allowance for loan losses.

Inventory
Inventory on properties constructed for sale is valued at lower of cost or market using
specific identification.

Property and Equipment

All acquisitions or donations of property and equipment are recorded at cost or their fair
market value at the date of the gift. Depreciation is provided for over the estimated useful
lives of the assets on a straight-line basis. The respective estimated useful lives are 5 to 39
years. The Organization follows the practice of capitalizing all expenditures for property and
equipment in excess of $1,000.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition
Contributions

Contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or
restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as increases to net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions
are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of
activities as net assets released from restrictions. Conditional contributions — that is,
those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return — are not
recognized as revenue until the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.

Conditional government grants and contracts not recognized in the financial statements
as receivables or revenues as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled $472,896 and $-0-,
respectively. Government grants and contracts are conditioned on incurring qualified
program expenses.

(13)



NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue and Revenue Recognition (Continued)

Donated Materials, Services, and Property and Equipment

Donations of building materials and property and equipment are recorded as in-kind
contributions at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Such donations are
reported as support without donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the
donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding
their use and contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment
are reported as support with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports expirations
of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. The
Organization reclassifies net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions at that time.

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid volunteers who
assist in building the houses. No amounts have been recognized in the accompanying
statements of activities for these services because the criteria for recognition of such
volunteer efforts under FASB ASC 958, have not been satisfied.

Property Transferred to Homeowners

Homes are sold to buyers that meet the Organization’s qualification guidelines. The
resulting mortgage are noninterest-bearing and have been discounted based upon
prevailing market rates for low-income housing at the inception of the mortgages. The
property transferred to homeowners in the statements of activities are presented net of
the applicable discount. The Organization recognizes the income from sales to
homeowners on the completed contract method when home closings occur.

ReStore Income

The Organization sells donated inventory through its two ReStore locations in Bloomfield
and Vernon, Connecticut. Donations to its ReStores are made by contractors and other
businesses, organizations and individuals that have surplus or discontinued
merchandise.

The purpose of the ReStores are to raise funds to support the Organization programs.
Accordingly, expenses of operating ReStores are reported as program expenses in the
statements of functional expenses. The amount of revenue reported from the ReStores
includes cash receipts plus the fair market value of donated goods sold, net of the cost
of purchased inventory sold. As most revenue earned by the ReStores are from the sale
of donated goods, the ReStores revenue are classified as support in the statements of
activities.

(14)



NOTE 1

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue and Revenue Recognition (Continued )
Revenue Recognition

Sales of inventory through its Restores and sales of homes to homeowners represent
the majority of revenues. Revenues are recognized when performance obligations are
satisfied at a point in time. Revenue from the Restores is recognized when control is
transferred to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Organization receives in exchange for its Restore inventory. Customers may return
certain items purchased from the Restores within a number of days. Restore sales are
recognized net of expected returns, which are estimated using historical patterns. The
Restores do not have any financing components as payment is received at the point of
sale. Revenue from sales to homeowners is recognized on the completed contract
method when home closings occur, net of the applicable mortgage discount.
Homeowners cannot return homes purchased from the Organization.

Functional Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of functional expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have
been allocated among programs and supporting services benefited. The financial
statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or more
supporting functions of the Organization. Personnel costs, including fringe benefits, have
been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on time and
effort. All other expenses have been allocated by costs of specific functions served.

Tax Status

The Organization is a nonprofit organization as described under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and is not subject to federal or state income taxes. Therefore,
no expense has been recognized for income taxes in the accompanying financial
statements. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
as provided in Section 170 of the IRC.

Leases

The Organization determines if an arrangement is a lease at inception. Lease right-of-use
(ROU) assets represent the Organization's right to use an underlying asset for the lease
term and operating lease liabilities represent the Organization’s obligation to make lease
payments arising from the lease. Lease ROU assets and lease liabilities are recoghized at
commencement date based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As
the Organization’s leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Organization uses its
incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at commencement date in
determining the present value of lease payments. The lease ROU asset also includes any
lease payments made and excludes lease incentives. The lease terms may include options
to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain that the Organization will
exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The Organization has lease agreements with lease and nonlease
components, which are generally accounted for separately.

(15)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE1 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements to conform to the
2024 financial statement presentation.

Subsequent Events
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through March 18, 2025, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE2 INVENTORY

The residential units in inventory consist of the following as of June 30,:

2024 2023
Construction in Progress and Completed Units
that are Unoccupied $ 3,532,266 $ 545,766
Land 200,685 99,214
ReStore Purchased Inventory 46,560 37,814
Total Inventory $ 3,779,511 $ 682,794

NOTE 3 LIQUIDITY

The Organization’s financial assets available to meet general expenditures within one year
of June 30, 2024 and 2023 are as follows, respectively:

2024 2023
Financial Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 457,651 $ 2,299,114
Accounts Receivable 104,349 57,485
Mortgage Notes Receivable, Current Portion 580,912 588,725
Total Financial Assets 1,142,912 2,945,324
Less Amounts Not Available to be Used Within One Year:
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 114,783 42,097
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditures Within One Year b 1,028,129 3 2,903,227

The Organization manages its cash available to meet general expenditures following three
guiding principles:

Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability;

¢ Maintaining adequate liquid assets; and
Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long term
commitments and obligations will continue to be met, ensuring the sustainability of
the Organization.

(16)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE4 MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE

Mortgage notes receivable represent noninterest-bearing amounts due from individuals who
have purchased homes constructed by the Organization. These amounts are to be paid over
terms ranging from 20 to 30 years as follows:

2024 2023

Mortgage Notes Receivable $ 9,727,935 $ 10,469,968
Less: Unamortized Discount on Noninterest-Bearing

Mortgage Notes Receivable (5,160,835) (5,547,579)

Subtotal 4,567,100 4,922,389

Less: Allowance for Credit Losses (119,312) -

Less: Current Portion of Mortgage Notes Receivable (580,912) (588,725)

Total $ 3,866,876 $ 4,333,664

Since the above mortgage notes are noninterest-bearing, the net present value of each of
these notes is less than face value. The net present value of these notes (at an imputed
interest rate ranging from (7.23% to 8.48%) is $4,567,100 and $4,922,389 at June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively. The servicing of these mortgages is performed by a bank. The
scheduled estimated maturities of these notes are approximately:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2025 $ 580,912
2026 577,505
2027 571,866
2028 567,790
2029 567,790
Thereafter 1,701,237
Total $ 4,567,100

Transactions in the allowance for credit losses during the year ended June 30, 2024 are
summarized as follows. The Organization adopted CECL as of July 1, 2023,

Allowance for Credit Losses:

Beginning Balance $ -
Adoption of ASC 326 -
Provision 119,312
Mortgages Charged Off -
Ending Balance 3 119,312

No amount was recorded for the year ended June 30, 2023 as management believed the
mortgages receivable to be fully collectible.

(17)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE4 MORTGAGE NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

NOTE 5

The following tables show an aging analysis of loan portfolio by time past due as of June 30:

2024 2023
Past Due Loans
15-29 Days Past Due $ 8,244,948 $ 9,576,954
30-59 Days Past Due 509,611 490,859
60-89 Days Past Due 379,475 -
>80 Days Past Due 593,901 402,155
Total $ 9727935 $ 10,469,968

The Organization sells homes based on its predetermined cost, which is reviewed annually
by HFHI, and concurrently, the Organization also holds a second and third mortgage on the
difference between the fair market value and the selling price. The purpose of the second
and third mortgage is to insure that the purchaser retains possession of the property for a
given period of time and does not sell to personally benefit from the difference between the
purchased price and the fair market value. The second and third mortgages are forgiven
ratably between six and thirty years after the purchase of the homes. If the homeowner sells
prior to the time period of the second and/or third mortgage being ratably forgiven, the
balance of the mortgage will be repaid from the sales price. It is anticipated that none of
these mortgages will be required to be repaid. As a result, these mortgages have not been
recorded in the financial statements as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following as of June 30,:

Outstanding Balance

2024 2023

SHOP/HUD Notes with stated rates of 0% payable through June 2029 $ 22251 % 39,855
Windsor Federal Savings Notes with stated rates of 4% payable

through July 1, 2032. 272,685 304,836
Connecticut Housing Finance Authority {CHFA) Notes payable with

stated rate of 0% payable through August 2034. 108,438 231,968
U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) note payable with interest

of 2.75% through May 16, 2050 134,244 141,936
SBA Economic Injury Disaster Loan Advance with stated rate of 10,000 10,000

2.75% payable through 2050
Peoples Bank Note with stated rate of 7.75% - 92,014

Total Long-Term Debt 547,618 820,609

Less: Mortgage Discount on Loans (26,935) (209,894)
Less: Current Portion of Long-Term Debt (62,548) (72,521)

Total Loan-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
and Discounts $ 458,135 §% 538,194

(18)



NOTE 5

NOTE 6

NOTE 7

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

As the above CHFA notes are noninterest-bearing and are for the purpose of providing the
funds needed for home construction, the net present value of each of these notes is less
than face value. The net present value of these notes (at an imputed interest rate of 5.00%)
is $108,438 and $231,968 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

All notes, except for the Habitat for Humanity International SHOP/HUD and SBA notes, are
secured by certain pledged mortgage receivable payments.

The expected maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2025 $ 62,548
2026 58,579
2027 57,590
2028 54,195
2029 55,249
Thereafter 259,457
Total $ 547,618

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions were subject to the following purpose restrictions as of
June 30, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Subject to Expenditure for Specified Purpose:
Housing Construction $ 114,783 $ 24,200
Education - 17,897
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions $ 114,783 $ 42 097

Net assets with donor restrictions of $42,097 and $10,800 were released for housing
construction and education during the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

IN-KIND DONATIONS

The Organization received in-kind contributions of unrestricted construction services totaling
approximately $25,000 that were utilized during each of the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively. Contributed services are reported at the estimated fair value based on
current rates for similar services in the principal market. In-kind contributions are recorded in
contributions in the statements of activities for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

(19)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN

The Organization provides a 401(k) plan for its employees. Eligible participants can elect to
contribute salary deferrals up to the IRS maximum. The Organization will match 100% of the
employee’s contribution up to 4% of the employee’s compensation at the plan year-end. For
the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization’s contributions totaled $44,457
and $40,699, respectively.

NOTE 9 LEASES
The Organization leases buildings under various operating lease agreements expiring in
various years through 2031. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023
totaled $236,349 and $222,866, respectively.

The following table provides quantitative information concerning the Organization's leases.

2024 2023
Lease Costs
Operating Lease Costs 3 134,215 3 157,243
Total Lease Costs $ 134,215 3 157,243
Other Information:
Operating Cash Flows from Operating Leases $ 122,415 $ 146,879
Right-of-Use Assets Obtained in Exchange for
New Operating Lease Liabilities $ 496,710 $ 1,141,692
Weighted-Average Remaining Lease Term -
Operating Leases 6.1 Years 7.5 Years
Weighted-Average Discount Rate - Operating Leases 3.84% 3.84%

A maturity analysis of annual undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities as of June 30,
2024, is as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2025 $ 221,930

2026 192,731

2027 192,252

2028 194,720

2029 178,928

Thereafter 229,425

Total Future Undiscounted Lease Payments 1,209,986
Less: Discount (134,035)

Total Lease Liability $ 1,075951

(20)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization is from time to time subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate
liability with respect to these actions will not materially affect the financial position of the
Organization.

(21






HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
FEDERAL SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
TABLE OF CONTENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE, AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
& A CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE,
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
Hartford, Connecticut

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program
Opinion on the Major Federal Program

We have audited Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2024. Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s major federal
program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc., complied, in all material respects,
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its
major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standardsissued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and the audit requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under
those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc., and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on compliance for the major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above.

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP] 1s an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAgIobaI,com[disclaimer
(1)



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Habitat
for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s compliance based on our audit.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut,
Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

¢ Exercise professional jddgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut,
Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

(2)



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc., as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2025, which
contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

%ZM@% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Woest Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2025

4)



'SpiemMy jelapad O seinypusdxg JO 8inpeyos o} sajoN 985

v0L'22s' L ¢ splemy |elepa |ejo]
POL°225'L  § 220°'le ¥eoe/iLL Aianooay [0Sl (8907 VANV 6L-AINOD
‘piofueH jo A0 ayy ybnouy | -passed
Ainseau] jo Juswypedaq ‘s'n
sainjipuadxy JaquinN Jaquinp juels Buipug 2l weiboig/Aanug
lelapay Bunsi Aug pollad yBnouy | -ssed/iojuels) |esapaq
[e10] aoue)sissy ybnouy] -ssed el
[eiapa4y

¥20Z ‘0€ ANNr A3AN3 ¥V3IA
SAAYVMYV TvH3a3d 40 STAUNLIANIHT 40 IT1NAIHIS
"ONI “LNOILOANNOD TVHLINID HLYON ALINVINNH ¥O4 lvligvH



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc., under
programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2024. The information in
the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets or cash flows of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

Basis of Accounting

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. For
cost-reimbursement awards, such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable
or are limited as to reimbursement. For performance-based awards, expenditures reported
represent amounts earned.

INDIRECT COST RECOVERY

Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de
minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

(6)



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
\ A CLAconnect.com

»

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
Hartford, Connecticut

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Habitat for Humanity
North Central Connecticut, Inc., which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 18,
2025.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Alliance for Community
Empowerment, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP) 15 an independent network member of CLA Global, See ClAglobal.com/disclaimer
]



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Habitat
for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.‘s internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WM—"’%‘ L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

West Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2025

(8)



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported
3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major federal programs:
¢ Material weakness(es) identified? ves X no
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
compliance for federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no
Identification of Major Federal Programs
Federal Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery

Funds Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $_ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no

®



HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT, INC.
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section Ill - Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Programs

No matters were reported.

(10)






CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
‘ A CLAconnect.com

»

Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
New Haven, Connecticut

We have audited the financial statements of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. (the
Organization) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 18, 2025. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards,
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related
to the planned scope and timing of our audit in our planning communication dated August 1, 2024.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit. '

Significant audit findings or issues
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Organization are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

As described in Note 1, the Organization changed accounting policies related to current expected credit
losses by adopting Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, in 2023. Accordingly, the accounting
change has been applied using the modified-retrospective approach.

We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. There were no accounting estimates affecting the financial statements
which were particularly sensitive or required substantial judgments by management.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

ntarsonAllen LLP}is an independent network member of CLA Global. See CLAglobal.com/disclaimer




Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
Page 2

Significant unusual transactions
We identified no significant unusual transactions.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our
audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated March 18, 2025.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Organization’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the Organization’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our engagement.



Board of Directors
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc.
Page 3

Supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) accompanying the
financial statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a
whole, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of
preparing the Schedule to determine that the Schedule complies with the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance, the method of preparing them has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such
changes, and the Schedule is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.
We compared and reconciled the Schedule to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated
March 18, 2025,

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and

management of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

WM@% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

West Hartford, Connecticut
March 18, 2025



CONSENT AGENDA



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
OF NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT
FEBURARY 4™ 5:30 PM

PRESENT IN PERSON: BELOW, ELLIOT, FARQUHARSON, FLOYD,
SCHILKE

PRESENT VIRTUAL: BATES, BLANCO, BLAKE, *BURNHAM(GUIDRY),
COHEN

STAFF IN PERSON: MOODY, MCKELVIE, HANSLEY

DEVOTION: Offered by Crystal —

Emphasis on the importance of intentional service on the Habitat Board.
Highlighted how every action contributes to Habitat’s mission of providing
affordable housing.

Encouraged board members to leverage their skills and networks for
fundraising and awareness.

Question posed to members: How can you be more intentional in your service
on the Habitat Board to make a real difference in the lives of the families we
serve?

Consent Agenda

Reviewed follow-up edits to the meeting minutes, including name spellings and
grammatical corrections.
Requested board members to review and provide feedback on the minutes.
Acknowledged the need for an official vote on the 2024 cumulative minutes.
Action Items:

o Nakisha to resend the updated minutes for final approval.

Board Introductions and New Nominations

Introduced existing and new board members nominees.
o Ian & Max Cohen from The Pinnacle Company, a three-year sponsor
and title sponsor for the golf tournament.



o TBD representative from the People's Bank, a long-term partner
focused on Community Reinvestment Act credits and mortgage
leveraging.

= Karraine to Follow up with Roma regarding the placeholder for
People's Bank nominee.

JENNIFER BURNHAM(GUIDRDY) MADE A MOTION TO NOMINATE
IAN & MAX COHEN AND A PLACEHOLDER BOARD SEAT FOR
PEOPLE’S BANK MEMEBER, AND ELLEN BELOW SECCONED THE
MOTION TO APPROVE NEW MEMEBERS. VOTE WAS UNAMOIUSOLY
PASSED.

« Jennifer Burnham - Announced departure from the board and the need for
volunteer to step up to take on Governance Committee lead.

 Her strong contributions since December 2019 acknowledged.

» Discussed the importance of maintaining governance and a strong board
pipeline.

« Jennifer offered support for the transition of the Governance Chair role.

Challenge Proposed:

o Each board member to provide at least one referral to Suzanne by end
of March.

4. Committee Updates
a. Development Committee — Don Bates

» Reengaged development meeting series, requesting additional financial
information.

« Plans to connect with Karraine for ongoing reporting.

« Focus on building out the development committee to drive additional
revenue.

o Action Items:

« Enhance development committee structure and explore revenue
strategies/opportunities.

b. Strategic Plan- Jennifer Burnham

» No updates; strategic plan is in place.
» Final strategic plan document to be beautified and published on web.



¢. RESTORE Task Force — Monica Blanco

« Conducted sessions to reassess current information on land surveys and
remediation options.

« Evaluated benefits and risks of purchasing vs. retaining leases.

« Plan to present findings to the Board in April after discussions in March with
HFHNCC staff.

d. Operations Updates — Karraine Moody and Kris McKelvie

o Staff Changes:

o Kris promoted to COO as of February 4th. Announce Kris’s
promotion officially on February 11th staff meeting, will also discuss
other staff transitions.

o Diana promoted to Director of Construction.

o Tom to retire at the end of the year; positions posted and seeking
replacements.

o Vacancy due to Nikki moving to Colorado; Marissa hired as
temporary assistant site supervisor.

« Construction Projects:
o Burnside Avenue:
« First five houses nearing completion with final touches
underway.
= Next phases include drywalling, flooring, and electrical work.
= Target completion by May-July for inspections and November
7th dedication.
« Financial Updates/Audit:

o Collaboration with the accounting team on the 990 form.

o Updates on trial balances and journal entries.

o Emphasis on accurate functional expenses for Charity Navigator and
GuideStar ratings.

« Volunteer Services:

o Cairo left in October; Marissa hired as a temporary replacement.

o Volunteer projections reduced from 30 to approximately 20 for
current builds.

o Focus on virtual training and ambassador roles.

« Office Space Transition:

o Moving back to 780 Windsor Street by May Ist.

o IT assessment completed; cost savings expected from consolidated
location.



« Habitat 2.0:
o Discussion on financial contributions and value received.
o Challenges with Habitat International's sponsorship agreements.
o Proposal to run financial reports and seek board decision by email.

The meeting concluded at 6:54 pm.

Respectively submitted
Nakisha Farquharson
Board Secretary



Habitat for Humanity North Central CT,
Board Resolution

Corporate Resolution to approve Nakisha Farquharson as Chair of the governance
committee.

Crystal Floyd, President

Don Bates, Vice President

Dates:



G Outlook

HFH - Conference Call Notes for 3/17/25

From Heather Higgins <heather.higgins@AccountingDepartment.com>
Date Mon 3/17/2025 5:00 PM
To  April Hansley <april@hfhncc.org>; Karraine Moody <karraine@hfhncc.org>; Kris McKelvie <coo@hfhncc.org>

Cc  Finance Department <finance@hfhncc.org>; Jana Conner <jana.conner@AccountingDepartment.com>;
Accounting Department <hfhncc@accountingdepartment.coms

Hi April, Kris, Karraine & Finance Team,

Thank you for joining our call 3/17/25. I have provided a summary of our call below. Please let me
know if you have any questions or additional comments.

Call Notes:

Attendees: Heather, Jana, Karraine, Kris, April
Conference Call Notes
e Financial Statement Review
© Reports are issued in draft due to not receiving the mortgage sales before the closing
deadline
o Balance Sheet
= Accounts Receivable is ABWK invoices
Deposits in Transit are debit/credit card sales from ReStore
Prepaid reports are included in the QBO report package monthly
Several items on the Balance Sheet are adjusted by the auditors
Accrual accounts are just to make sure all expenses are included in the correct
month
= Retained Earnings is an accumulation of prior year’s earnings
= Net Income is the current profit or loss
o Profit and Loss
= Donations come from Neon
= P&L YTD compares the same time period in the current and prior fiscal years
= P&L by Department - Unassigned is Volunteer
= P&L BvA Annual - the budget includes the full year’s budget
= We can remove the General Ledger from the QBO report package if no one uses it
* Jana will be leaving ADC at the end of March. The new controller will be introduced as soon as
one is assigned.

Thanks,

Heather Higgins
Senior Accountant
Client Services Team

heather.higgins@accountingdepartment.com
(888) 858-9919 Ext. 306

https://link.edgepilot.com/s/07¢19606/SgdzcPVADUITN DSOXyQGUg?
u=https://zoom.us/my/Heather.Higgins



@ Outlook

HFH - Conference Call Notes for 3/24/25

From Heather Higgins <heather.higgins@AccountingDepartment.com>

Date Mon 3/24/2025 2:37 PM

To  April Hansley <april@hfhncc.org>; Karraine Moody <karraine@hfhncc.org>; Kris McKelvie <coo@hthncc.org>
Cc  Finance Department <finance@hfhncc.org>; Jana Conner <jana.conner@AccountingDepartment.com>; John

Wojnarowski <john.wojnarowski@AccountingDepartment.com >, Accounting Department
<hfhncc@accountingdepartment.com>

Hi April, Kris, Karraine & Finance Team,

Thank you for joining our call 3/24/25. 1 have provided a summary of our call below. Please let me
know if you have any questions or additional comments.

Call Notes:
Attendees: Heather, Jana, John, Karraine, Kris, April, Nicole (CLA)

Conference Call Notes
* Jana introduced John Wojnarowski as the new Controller
e Statement of Functional Expense
o In previous years, Finance was broken out between development and admin
© Jana’s thought process was that Finance was not a program as it holds all administrative
expenses
= Heather will send Kris the breakdown of Auto Expense, Dues, and IT to see what
should be included in programs
= Nicole noted that typically 80% goes to programs and 20% goes to admin and
fundraising combined
© ADC will reallocate the functional expenses and send to Nicole by Wednesday
* Budget
o Utility/Office Expenses - going forward, a monthly journal entry will be posted to split
between Construction, Family Services, Volunteer, and Development

Thanks,

Heather Higgins
Senior Accountant
Client Services Team

heather.higgins@accountingdepartment.com
(8B8) 858-9919 Ext. 305

https://Iink.edgepilot.ccm/5/3bee9c57/GW59ur834UWIUE953aLGcg?
u=https://zoom.us/my/Heather.Higgins



£

IqeAed 1o) yse) ejqe|jeAy
1509 ||0sAed pejewuyysg
Yse) sjqejjeay |ejo)

BS'LLE'9EY LS
¥8°856'79$
roee'tol'Ls

Y EEE'EGHS SPaaN ysey |ejol
L0ge 104" LS yseD e|qe|(eay [ejo)
G2/20/v0 VE'obP's 8|qeajaaay sjunoaay |ejo)
abeseae uo paseq pejlewnsy, $9'896'p9g ajeq Aed xeN saxe] @ ||osfey 12'105'828 anq jsed sAeq +16
00°0$ 8nQ sed sheq 06-19
00°9L2S anq 1sed sfeq 06-1€
L8'7PL' 1898 Hliqer] wus) GuoT |ejoy 00°0% enq jsed sfeq og-|
00'SLP'8Z18 Vs siqeded sjoN 00262 15'92L°98 juauny 00021
6L'E69°ELS QANH/JOHS 3l9eked sejon §2162 BlqeAlaey sjunoasy
¥Z'r10°Z6$ jueg sejdoay seBebuop paubissy 09162
69'2b2'6618 V4HO sabebuoy paubissy 00L62 Lr0LL'2$ Sjessy JusLng |ejo)
SEYLL IS $dM sabebpop paubissy 04062 LP0LL'2S spund peysodepun 666¥1
senilqe|] wie ) Buon S]9SSY juaung Jeyip
YEZSZ'6$ SpieQ Upai) lejo) 99'ELL'ELE'LS sBuiaes/Bupiseyo |ejo)
PE'Z6Z'68 PELSH PIED NpBi) 19)Sgap 0002z LL'BEL'LS lays16ay ysegn 20201
spaed Jpaln 05°L¥E'2ZLS SPAcEs |4 yueg Auegn 1L0Z0}
18'6L9'LLYS jueg Aunwiwos jsemylon 90101
6E°£86'46$ alqefed sjunoaoy |ejog SE'6BS'LZS yZZP Hueg Lsw S0LOL
{irpiv'Ls) enq ised sfeq +16 £1'165'028 £658 Jueg sejdoay 010}
(Z1'0Lr8) anQ Jsed sAeq 06-19 00°000'005% 8912 [eJepag Jospuipm £0L0L
00°0$ ang ised sAeq 0g9-1¢ 00°00ES 6ZYOESV.L# JOHS/ANH [BJepa4 Jospuipm 2010}
08'86€'SHS ang ised sfeq og-| SL'p20'LLES PBLELEY/# doamg |eiapad Jospuipy LoLoL
8L'69b'F5S uaung 00002 09'20L'8518 98LELERLH [BIOPAZ JOSPUIAL 00L0L
s|qefeq sjunoaoy sBujnegBu)yoayy
spaap ysed ysed s|qejeay
S20Z ‘SZ ysJep jo sy

"duj IndposUUG) jelUSD YHON AjuBWINg Joj JejgeH



S20Z ‘87 Adenuqay
s}io0day |edueuly Ajyjuow

J1d2UU0) [eAjud) YLION
JANuewiny 1oy

1e}iqey




90 10 7 aded

SIUBWEIVLS feueul o AIULINSEL AUL SIACID ¥y ) ON AUS 35T UL IFRURLL o4
Alewwng Jua waje}s awodu|
(£00'Z62)% S£5'502% 067'055% (£96'20T)% (TEE'ZVP)S (L58'90£)8 (0Ts'L12)% (€8T'0Z2)$ yse3 ur aSueyy
621’208 ZEB'VE0'TS £6Z'688¢% L08'8E5S SLLTEvS 901884 £96'06T'T$ £80°80K' TS pueH ug ysey
M3[AMRAQ AW wng
¥2-190 yz-dog vz-Bny vz-Inr pz-unp vz-Aew pz-1dy vz-1em SWEN
sjenoy
ysed @ Swodu| 3°N @ 9suadx3 ® swodu| 419Yy10 & awodu| Bupesadp @
x3do @ uibiep ssoun ) SDod @ 9NUB3N3Y @
Gz ue| rz 290 ¢ AON ¥z 120 vz dag pz By

e
1

“EEgy
_W_
il

[zl bz unf

FZ Al P idy

WT-

]

__ A006-
I | | o T T

]

e

LI LI | I | N ) I

24005

AT

WG'T

Aewwns aAinoaxy
INDPBUUC) [eRURD YO Aiuewuny 104 1e3iqeH



A0L0 & 8

EVETEMOCRTTET TaL) Lo SduL

756% 09T'TS 8/5% rr9s 5659 £99% 09v% 55¥% $234 323G JURLDIB Y

vBE'eS yies 866¢ 4283 67% - - 8% JUBWIUEN)UT § SBA
LET'9CE 9zL'1ed £€€'8% L3V'TTE 094'TT8 68S'T1§ 659714 TrT'0T$ $994 |BUOISS2)014 ¥ [e337]
5559'L1% STS'ETS SZS'ETS STS'ETY STS'ETS 08r'91% SZS'ETS SBL'ETS 8JUBINSU|
Tr1's$ yrS'vs BES'SS 605°L8 756'v$ 690'5$ £60'5 LL9'vE A30|ouya) uonewIo|
£69'TS 02Z1% 0213 0Z1% S0€$ £66'78 £7es 0489 51507 paje|ay awoyH
6E6'TS 769'05% 681'STS 6L7% 0g£ed 9L8'7$ 62'9% javds sasuadxg Sursielpung
600°02¢ 759'v1e £99'L1% SLLTES wL'tes vES'TZE 6£8'8TY 765'92$ syjauag ashojdus
6693 SER'TS 165'€3 £45¢ £75¢ £18% 90T'T$ 60L'T$ suondiuasqng g sang
ST'1E 9Epe £98'1¢ 978¢ €448 ¥r0'Z$ 8Z6% ST¢ saijddng ajis uoljaniisuo)
- 2 000'szs - - - - - suoIINqUILOY 3|qeLeY)
£80'9¢ £20'9% ST9's¢ 152'6% ¥98's$ vL6'SE S67'6% £90'9% $994 pie JIpasd pue yueg
159'2¢ 912'2% vel'es £86'T¢ 980'9% ¥80'2% 05.¢ 0ra'ss ‘quiay aBea)iw /el fony
096% 096% SZ5'T¢ 060'2% 060'2% 060'2% Ly0'E$ 060'2¢ RISIA % dioduawy
69Z'2% 508°L% 161% 18% = £L8'P% 004'€$ 9zr'ed UoIjoWOld % BUISILIBADY
Py Agx3do
%6'66 %666 %8 LL %eT8 %EV8 %9'68 %S LL % widiep ssoug
69T'892% ZST'shos 9EV'BETS 8YE'TETS PSE'TSTS L97'66T¢ 0vELITE UiSisEshis
(83 629% 12869 6vv'0E$ 9£8'ced 98T'eZ$ 089'8v$ $900 |8i019ng
¥ 679% TZ8'6E% S67'7T% = 579'6% T0S'vES 310153y - P|os SPOCY o 1507
£1Eg 8r9'ss . - #ST'8% 9EB'EES T99'€1$ 6LT'PTS $1500 YMEY
9% 0TZ'15T'TS = . = = = - SJES BWOH 40 1503
§902
88¢'892% £08'908¢ 18£'5%9% LS2'6LTS L6Z'79T% 06T'S5T2% £5v'zzZed pzo'91Zs anuaaay |eoiqns
2 000'9E9% s - - - - - S3|ES BWOH
618'621% Z10'Z01% LZL6TTE 765'66% 96T'TZTS T8L'9ETS YrEZETE T6E'2913 awodu| 13Yi0
0Z¥'L0TS 00K'EEd 716'L9% 9T0'LE F2'501$ 0/z'6€8 05S5'1€% 0£9'52¢ 2NUIARY BWOH-UON
6vz'1eS T6E'GE% r1'8svs 6V9'7L$ 6ET'6ES 655'85% 666'£2% S]ueJ9 3 SUOIjEUO( [B}OL
anuanay
¥2-190 pz-dos vz-Bny yz-inr yg-unp vz-kew pz-sdy ve-1em SLIEN

s|enjoy

+ AIBLILUNG BAIIND3X « JN21123UL0D |BAU3D YUON AJURWNY 10} je)IqeH




0L 40 g O

1 aN IH U B LUrL IOy
09¢ 09z 09z 09z 0'9e 09z 05z ez junodpesH |ejoiqng
09z 09z 09z 09z 092 092 092 09z paudisseun
junodpeay
junodpeay

%96l WO J3N

86£'07€% aloaU| AN

T$ T$ asuadx3 ¥ swoau| Jayio

%96t 9% awodu Buneladg

;s 96E'0ZES I'86)% ! awooy| Supjesadg
£90'7828 TL8'90€8 952'vzEs S09'zges 990'092¢ Th2'262$ 919'£52¢ 6£209$ 13y £qx3d0 je301ans
# 7 = - 2 -$ # - sasuadx] ||osheq
98z'8¢ 982'8% 987'8% 98Z'8% 987'8% 987'8% 987'8% 987'8% asuadxj uoneizaidag
8/8% £88% 9689 506% P16% £E76% 7E6% 763 SUBOT UO J53ia)U)
05T% 966'7% EEV'ES ELE'PS 61T £88'TS S9E'ES SLL'ES sann
0€0'e S1Z'ZS 0rz'z$ L04'T8 85918 TIE'e 6EY'ES 0TL'Z$ Buiphaay 9 yses|
918'€$ Z 505'v¢ . - - - - ayy L
(823 61F$ 6T¥% vIvs 6TFS S9r$ 08 Tiv$ SUOIEIUNWWICI3)3),
(39)% Ly1$ POE'TS 121083 SZO'T$ 780'T$ 96F'1$ Burures yeis
2 0€T¢ 185¢ - 9TL$ L0L$ 056'T% 961% asuadxg 5(00] ||jews
656'c$ 60T'e$ 9Tt'6% v62's$ £97's% ELT'ES Uv'es LSE'EY Juey B sieday 310
v60'zet £96'87¢ vSLSTY £1€91¢ ETE'9TY ETE'9TS ETE'9TY EEQ'LTY Uy MYO
120'T$ T0£% I4:143 TIT¢ T0T'T4 s0z¢ £6% veeg agdeisoy
9ee'sd £89'8% S8Y'01¢ 0rT'e$ 7Z29'6% 129'71$ zeL'01$ TI911¢ saxe) [|oihed
8TE'90TY 960°0TT$ 6EL'0ETS LL6'801S 880'V1TS C0L'8ETS vOE'L0TS 958'8T1$ “ako|dw3 dway ¥ sauejes 5 safepm
6vL've Tv0'es 698'7¢ 181'Z4 154'2¢ £TF'ES 8Z9'7% 889't$ sasuadxl saiy0
886'87$ ££9'6% o08'0ed 698°€T$ £91'82% 829'02% STY'1ZY 860'6T% adesols » Sumop

yz100 pz-des yz-Bny yzenr pz-unp ve-kew pz-ady vz-ew BulEN
. - ‘ ) . o . . o ww_m_-.uuu(_ ) o - - - o

+ AlRWIWING 8AIIND9X T « JN1DBULC Y |ejuB)) YylIoN Ajuewny jof1elqeH



Ueu 53

L0 aoueinss

94
£SK'80T¢ 665'L16% EEB'ES
ZYE'EEL'TS 988'vZ9' 1§ 18T'LL9% pSY'EL9E
TAGEE] SZ-uer vz-odq ¥Z-AON
sjenjay

« AMBLIWING 3ANNDBX 3 « JANIBLL0Y [e1yUIT YlioN Ajuewny soj jenqey

Kewwng juawajeys awoou)

ysed uy a8uey)
pueH ug ysey

majuaQ Mewwng

awiey



G009 a2

L as3aul 1o a2 A asn jua SRUPL UG

00¥4 055% 0S5% 080'T$ $894 22IMIBS JUBYIID

& ? SLES £25'ee JUaWLIRIBIIT R Sea
PES'OTE 60EFTS 189'v1¢ L16'9T¢ 5934 [BUCISSAJ0Id B |eBa]
665'71$ yZs'vTe STS'ETS 8TQ'ST¢ |dueINsy|
19+'s% 990'7% 6TE'eS LT£'SY ABojouyaay uonewuou
048% 0v8'9¢ [iT483 0z1id 1500 paje|ay swWoH
SST'TE LE2% YLT'PE 680'C% sasuadxy Suisieipuny
298'6Z¢ 759'61¢ 975’223 98£'07¢ sjijauag aafojdwy
TLT'T8 S04 6¥5% 895% suondyosqng g sang
78 ¥L8% ¥rs'TS TLE¢ sayddng ayis uonanisuoy
00T$ - - - SUOIINGII U0 3|geyLEYD
690'5% 6£0'5% 59t¢'9% 099'9% $834 pIe) JIpaJ) pue yueg
S60'TS 116'2% 66E'TE L19% quiay a8es)w/|aaell foiny
0ET'TY 0£T'T¢ 569'T$ 08v$ BISIA ¥ dodawy
5e8'8¢ 00L'L8 SEC'8% S0Z'1$ UoIIOWOId % BUISIIBAPY
120y Aq x3do
%I'98 %8'CL WI'6L %0°00T % UIgiew ssolg
6v9'cEzs £09'L06% Sse'6£78 600'682¢ wBiew ssoig
BzZr'ovs L9¥'6EES 186'29% = $907 |E303qNg
805'87¢ £6T°Z¢ 186'29% g ) 210152y - P|0§ SPLOD J0 1507
126'11¢ = - * SIS0D MEY
= VLT LEES - - S3|ES AWOH 40 1500
$900
LLOVLTS OTT'LFZ'TS SEE'TOES 600'682¢ anuaABY |ejoIgng
- 600'22¢% 1Z0°6% - 53|eS ALUOH
7Ze'zes LOT'65T% 0£5'94% £85'901¢ 300Ul 13410
005°c€g 0se'0gd 00£'8T% 00T'ves 2NUIABY BWOY-UoN
9S£'80T$ pyL'5E8% £80'86T% EZE'BSTS SJUBJD ¥ SUOljeuo( B}o)
anuanay
sz-q94 sz-uep ¥z-920 ¥Z-AoN SWEN
T — m_m_.:um. ; :

+ AIBLILLNG 2ANND3XT + 1NDN22UU0T [BIIUS Y YlIoN Ayuewnyy 1oy yepqen



IS} LG 83 AU 350 JUILLGAPLCLL L0 4

1213

092 092 0°9¢ 09z junolpeay [eyoiqng
0'9¢ 09z 09z 092 paudisseun
junoapeay
junodpeay

%5'05 %E'TT % AWOIU| }BN
9£0'0£9% ovL'zEs T
ITBYS 1% asuadx3 ¥ awodu| J1ayyg
%T0S %ETT % swodu) Buneladp
0ZZ'sz9t 6EL'ZES awosy| Funesadg
(296628 vzy'zazs L1E'95Es 0L2'952% 13y £ 300 |e103gnS
- = = - sasuadx] ||oukey
982'8¢ 987'8¢ 987'8% 987'8¢ asuadxj uoienaidag
T8¢ 058% 9% 698% SUROT UO }SaIa)L)
£85'p3 S0T's$ 8zE'es $88'TS sannn
194'1% 610'7% I4:Y4 2 S0E'es BulRAIRY B ysey|
h B - N Byl
¥4 13 SZrs 4723 809¢ SUONEIUNWWI 33
05v$ LLvg 08% 091% Bujuies] Jjels
Sh'Te r0Le [4d 443 66T% asuadxy 5100 ||ewwS
L65'6TS 62Z'v$ 0v9's rr9'es ‘Julew 9 sueday 810
L1228 LeT'2es LET'ees 196'12% way anjo
¥6% £L% FPos 6bze 381504
0L£'21¢ 65Z'€T$ S6T'ETS SLT'8% Saxe| ||0ihed
6LT'9TTS LER'ZITS 159'05T3 650'50T$ akojdw3 dwa) % sanejes g sagep
156'T¢ 09Z'T T09'v$ L06% sasuadx] 32140
719'82¢ 981°8T¢ L80°TVE 715'82¢ a3e10)s ¥ Suinop
sz-uer vz-99a vZ-AoN BULIEN

ETASLE]

sjenjoy

+ AIBLIWING BAIIN2BX T « JNJNDIULCT |213UBT) YUON AIUBWINK 10§ 1e)igeH



353 LD

DOL 0§

P RUE L S0

1234 |BIS BY] JO J3PUIB WAL BY] JBAO JIDIJ3P SIY} 9IS O} BNUIFUOD ||IM IAA P319SPNq Sem 1eYM JIAO0 AjJuediylusis

940159y ay3 Ind 3 'saxe} JaySiy sy} Jo UCIUPPE 3} YIM Jeak Ju
jou sem saxe) Al1eaA Ul asesudul ay) Inq ‘Jual pled sAem|e sey a1015ay

244N 3y} 10} PalRND|ed SBM JUBJ UBYM ‘310JaJaY | SIe3A [RIBASS J0) Suo|e passed
3L "93ueINSU| puB S3XE] 3PN|dUI J0U PIP ING 00S'61$ SEM JURY 810153y Palaspng -
S9JON JUsUEB L9

JSG6% SA X85 S1183pNng g LA '193pNng Japun S| awodu JaN -
198png Japun 3094 10 % s1 x3dO ALA -
128pNg 33 J18A0 J09G% 4O %L SI ANUIAY QLA »

S9]oN 193png

94NJUINS 321110 JO 3|eS - INUSASY 48410 DOLSE

SIIAISS [BAOLIDL MOUS pUB S3D1}J0 10|} puZ 0} S8pet8dn - asueuajuiey pue sieday 82110 00Z/9 -

90N juslewlad 38s - 910359y 40} pa}a8pnqg sem Q05 6LE - pled sem //1'22% - U9y 00LLS

Jjueg AJunwwo) }samylion 03 Plos s4am sa3e81IoW 7 - Junodsig a8eSow /2|qeAlooay se8e310W 00LYL/000%L

PaAI233. ££9°L$ JO punyad a8elanod Apadoud - aoueunsu| Ayjigen 0zzeo9 -

P|0s 949m saBRSHOW 7 - jueg AHUNLWIWOD }SOMYIION 9010L -

:Kieniqa4 10) S310U 3y} 3.8 3o




slu=suls

MWL U0 JouL

Se AuE samncId Y O

A5 U WA HRLE J04

IPEEEL’L 988K LBELLY rSrEL9 6ZF 708 CERPB0L SJUNDI2Y jueg |R10]
6EL'l 6EL'L 6ELL A 6EL°L 68471 1BsIdey (seD
880101 E9LY 209'8S BORLSL 92481l 098°2ZL SPIEERLY Huey Alagn
0Z9'1Y [:Tal¥ 24 5C0'9¢ ST0'9E 0£0'9¢7 S§97°TT9 LZBER HuUEY AJUNWILIOD) 1SIMULON
6854C Ep'se Ele'l 0576l 0ct'sl 88E0F ek JUEG 12W
[ a! 569'SPT LEOL6L 188’8z L8887 L88'EO0L £658 3ued 551d0ay
000005 005'005 009 B86v Q0% - 85T [elapa 4 JOSpUIA
Q0E 00e 01033 Q0f 00& DOE 6CrOEIVLE JOHS/ANH [219p3 4 Jospuipy
?8LEVE [T (66101 BLT69T S6'EET EQEpL POLELE YLt U33MS |21BPA 4 JOSPUIAA
000'091 £55'951 SL'6S! 521651 8079l SL'68l SBLELE W/ # |RIOPI J JOSDUIN
S€-484 S¢-uef v-22d wT-ACN vZ-120 r-dass e p]

ysed

23ty



SIUBLUSILIS [KIDULUL 2534} LD d2URINSSE ALE Sapaoad T ON AU0 ash juoiuaEel

sienjay @

Souer v 2eq 7 AON v 10 e dag v 3Ny ve

VDAL 0 L wdig

HCSE

AG0G

WEZL

Wael




0ee'EEL

syl

[1IIURUL 359U} U0 S3URINISSE AU s

g

Cad v d ) ON

Uo asi Jualliaseued

LIELEL

) s U

3AISSIY YSED) |BUDHIPRY

128png suoijesad() [PIOU G SYUOW £

0oL &9 &9 9 00z ¢ Qo 198PNY $1507) PJEH UOI1INJISUDT) SYIUOW £
£05'FELL 00651 L TTE 615809 0I52ES 8Y9'89¢ BLE'SBL 608'0LE yse3|eol
LZ8Z0L Zee'Ey SPE09 LP5'6SL 59071 665"l PELLG £0L'9¢ yseD HuitesadQ ai015ay
LOE LOE LOE {0}3 L0t LOE [18}3 LOE dOHS/UNH |e4apa 4 Iespuip
6HS'YC ZEP'ST ele'lc 054°6L [eTali:1] 288’0 §56'9¢ LEOEE Jueg pajiun sajdosy
S8£'E001 SL3'890'1 899°19¢ 156'82 Y VES' BEE 66E't0C 886'959 BOEICE |218p a4 JOSPUIAA
SZ-4a4 GZ-uer rz-2aQ vE-AoN rZ-120 ye-das re-8ny - |n BWEN

BAIRSDY Yysed




SOLI0 7L<

SIUGWIBILLS [ROURL 05I4) UD SURINSSE AUR SADIAGKD YU 3 ON  AJUD 351 JUSLLSIRULLL (04
S8 21A495-3UNSEID40)-8 W s|endy @ sjenyay tZ0Z 3A43198png i sjenpy o
EEMEE\E\ECU.EoEtmumUMEE:oﬂm.\sa;\\“m&z:
“ SO 5 o 5 ¢ A
S$3UISNG oA M43 ey suoisidap | HQVw eoa W 87% eoo & 89% ﬁoaf 5 e%@ L & Al &
34} 23ELU UBD NOA 05 paau NoA uoljewour ayy spiaosd | A < | S L
O] :|eod ayl ssauisng JnoA aaup djay jey; spleoqysep = Wi- - L=
Y} 2Ny SAOIAIRS SUNUNOIIE  PAsND0j-auningy Ny ,
, - [ Moot
! e i — — - - . n— o {
. d W - 0 - g . RN .
gluswiliedaq M\ _ <
3 bununonoy il i
H
i swoduj Supesdo uidiewy ssodn dlA S90)D 240353y
112 MAlAGI [IURLY
PIINPALYIS N0 WO S}Nsas AlYjuow sjenpy @ S, uer | pojiad snojavdd O
2U) BUIMIIABL O PIEMIO) HOD| DpA $Z. 9924 | sjenjay @
5¢ 994 Sc uel rZ38g 7CAON praRlo] vT dag Ve Bny venr
‘nusil puey & 3] o
-}3] 3y} Ui uod| spoday P ot
988'7¢9'L
Y3 3undipd Aq passadde s 3
9q osje ued Jodas
3y} jo Adod v “aedir
elA spodad anok ssedoe e CHEEELTS
0}jul] e noA pajiew? xado YIUOW 3SET SA Yyse)
9M "SZ0Z Menigay
y3nodyj paxdoj pue
Posoj2 s1a|y gD 4noA sjenpy @ sjeny @ sjenjoy @
I T S o S L S S o B > N el > o ] o
o S 2 RO e 2 < & o 2 3 N
aamuhmz_._au [eU2) Yoy &fP & .,_\rJ /_\C L\c/ g nvﬁo :@o A..ca & Ac/ 5\(0 ‘_\,<+ ,mc/c MJﬁ? ,\urc 2 i Afﬂ A\(.o Aeo Aﬁé Aw,m/
ueliny 10, _ — - 0 - - { = -
1elqeH . """ -- 100
Wi L H00L
e W A0C ¢
$DH0D “*9A9Y Juswdojoreqg INUDADY B40}SOY




SIUSWIELe}E [RauL

SRIL U0 AIULINSE T AL 5apinoid gD S AIUG 25N U3 A ERUEL 104

ysey o
2WoduleN @ ewodu Supelado @ x3do @
uidiew ssoig o S50 @ anuaAly @
52 q34 Gz uer ¥Z33Q vz AON ¥Z120 vz das
0 = " : . Wo'L-
Ml ot T
o o | —Emm -
WZ wo'L

juswaje)s awoduj

¥Z0Z 3A4303png
sjenpy @

>/O./J7$JA
ST e
N i i P

ACOL

$90D v40352Yy

90| 4o £| fded

Ysed o sjessyioN @  semyjiqel] o sjessy @
52 q94 Sz uer vz aaq 7Z AON vZPo vz dag
0 i LB - il fas [ L g

S e ad S N - WS

WL - -~
ol wol

@---————--=@

we WalL
pue4y yse)
N _ % 2 = = aney ¥ong

Szl EeC 8's¢ LeL ol v'sl

oney juaunsy

SZ-a4 Sg-uer ve-29aQ Z-rON Z-120 pz-dag

alen

soney [eppueuly



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

1, Nakisha Farquharson, do hereby certify that I am the Secretary of Habitat for Humanity North Central
Connecticut, Inc., a Connecticut corporation (the “Company”), that I have been duly elected, appointed and
qualified and am presently serving in the capacity of Secretary of the Company in accordance with the Company
of Secretary of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, and that, as
such. | am authorized to execute and deliver this Certificate on behalf of the Company. I hereby certify as follows:

1. Attached here to as EXHIBIT A is a true, correct and complete copy of the resolutions duly adopted by
the Board of Directors of the Company, which resolutions have not been amended, modified, superseded
or rescinded, and remain in full force and effect on the date hereof.

2. The person named below is now and has been duly qualified as an acting officer of the Company, duly
elected and/or appointed to the office as set forth opposite his respective name and the signature set forth
opposite his name an office is his respective genuine signature:

Name : Office Signature
Crystal Floyd President, Board of Directors

Ellen Below Treasurer, Board of Directors

Karraine Moody Chief Executive Officer

Kris McKelvie Chief Operating Officer

In Witness Whereof the undersigned has executed this Certificate on behalf of the Company in her
capacity as Secretary as of the 4" day of June, 2024.

Nakisha Farquharson, Secretary

The Undersigned, Crystal Floyd. President, Board of Director of the Company, does hereby certify that
Nakisha Farquharson is a duly elected, qualified and acting Secretary of the Company as of the date set forth
below and that the signature set forth above is her genuine signature.

In Witness Whereof the undersigned has executed this Certificate on behalf of the Company in her
capacity as Board President of the Company as of the 4™ day June, 2024.

Name: Crystal Floyd
Title: President, Board of Directors



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTIONS

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTIUT, INC.

Certificate of Adoption of Corporate Resolution

I, Nakisha Farquharson, Secretary of Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut, Inc. (“Habitat”
A Corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Connecticut, do hereby certify that at a

meeting of the Board of Directors of Habitat, duly held on 4" day of June, 2024, at which a quorum for the
transaction of business was present and acting throughout, the following resolution was duly adopted, has not
been amended or repealed and is still in full force and effect:

RESOLVED, that the following officer of Habitat, Crystal Floyd, Nakisha Farquharson, Kris McKelvie,
Karraine V. Moody, Individually is authorized to do the following:

1. Establish checking, savings, trusts or investment accounts in any national or state bank in the State of
Connecticut, or with any investment manager or advisor, duly registered in the State of Connecticut.

2. Execute Checks, wire transfers, drafts or withdrawals on any savings or checking of investment account.

3. Execute any and all contracts for the purchase, lease, assignment, transfer, or options to acquire or lease
equipment, furniture, fixtures, motor vehicles, and any other tangible personal property.

4. Execute any and all contracts for the purchase, lease, sale, assignment, and/or transfer of real estate or real
property.

5. Execute any contract creating a mortgage, or any other form of indebtedness related to the purchase,
assignment, and or transfer of real estate.

6. Perform any other acts or activities, execute and deliver any and all documents, pay all fees, costs and
expenses that may in the opinion of the officers so acting, be necessary, desirable or expedient to
effectuate the purposes of this resolution, including, without limitation, reasonable costs of transactions,
safeguarding and safekeeping, and advice, such necessity desirability or expediency to be conclusively
evidenced by the taking of such action, the execution of documents, or the payment of fees, cost and/or
expenses.

7. Prepare, execute, manage, and monitor any and all grant applications, funding requests and investment
relationships, including but not limited to EQ2s (Equity Equivalents), for the purpose of promoting the
mission and programs of Habitat.



RESOLVED, That April Hansley, acting individually are authorized to do the following:

1. Execute any and all contracts for the purchase, lease, sale, assignment, and/or transfer of real estate or real
property. There is a $15,000 limit for this authorization.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this the 4™ day of June, 2024.

By: Nakisha Farquharson
Title: Secretary



MINUTES OF DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
HABITAT FOR HUMANITY
OF NORTH CENTRAL CONNECTICUT
FEBRUARY 13, 2025

ATTENDANCE: DON BATES, CRYSTAL FLYOD, KARRAINE MOODY, KRIS MCKELVIE, DAN
SCHILKE

DISCUSSION TOPICS:
®  Share Corporate Donor list with the Board of Directors which shows year-over-year donations
* Drive Board Member participation in local networking events such as Metro Hartford Alliance,
CBIA, etc. type of events. Share a list of events where we are participating and seek board
participation in all events
* Look for ways for Board Members to drive social media participation, develop materials that
Board members can share with their contacts, encourage reposts and likes of the Habitat posts




RESTORE ACTION PLAN



PURCHASE VS LEASE ASSESMENT - 2025

ReStore
500 Cottage Road Bloomfield, CT




Considerations: Positive vs Negative Implications or Risk

Financial Investment & Cost

Tenant Investments: Habitat expenses and investments — approximately $80K

Equity Building: You can build equity in the property over time as its value appreciates,
creating a long-term asset.

Tax Benefits: Deductions for depreciation and mortgage interest can be significant tax
advantages.

Greater Control: You have full control over modifications, and property management
decisions.

Predictable/Fixed Mortgage Costs: Payments are usually fixed for the mortgage term
(vs lease term expiration window of 2034.)

High Upfront Costs: Requires a large down payment and closing costs.

Maintenance Responsibility: Full responsibility for repairs and maintenance, including
major issues (vs landlord today), building ageis 72 yrs.
e Investments & Upkeep: Roof updates in 2024, Habitat investment of $800K in
upkeep
e land Environmental Risks & Remediation cost: Unknown ultimate cost.

Minimal Flexibility: Cannot move to a new location without selling a property.
Market Volatility: Property value can fluctuate based on economic conditions.

Profitability: Across the past two years, Bloomfield Restore has had revenue, expense,
and net profit challenges Additionally, payments associated with purchase (down
payment, closing costs, etc.) could create a cash strain.

e Forthe 8M from July 2024 to February 2025, Bloomfield Restore has incurred a
$187k loss.

e Forthe 8M to February 2025, total ReStore net income is $324k below plan -
total losses, including Tolland, are $279k, compared to a $44k budgeted net
income.

e AnnualBloomfield expenses of ~543k, primarily taxes and insurance, are paid by
Habitat in addition to the $110k annual lease payment.

Long Term Security &
Community

Long Term Placement: Alleviate potential for lease renewal Issues: May face difficulties
renewing the lease or finding a suitable replacement space in Bloomfield, CT when
transfer of ownership occurs.

Mission & Community: Secures long term presence/space to Bloomfield community.




Other Considerations

7

Land Environmental Risks: Regulatory monitoring or changes in environmental
regulatory environment may create risk.

Liability: Increase in exposure as primary ownership of property/land.

Limited Flexibility: Purchase of the property creates challenges with relocation or
change of Restore strategy.

Red Font = negative implication or risk




Term 1: Signed in April 2014 (up to 2044)

Time Period Monthly Fixed Rent Annual Fixed Rent o recognii

Some pages ma
text recogniticn

Lease Year 1 through Lease $3,666.67 $44,000.00 Recognae Yot
Year 10

Lease Year 11 through Lease To be determined in accordance with Section 50 below

* Year 15

(First Renewal Term)

Lease Year 16 through Lease To be determined in accordance with Section 50 below
Year 20

(Second Renewal Term)

Lease Year 21 through Lease To be determined in accordance with Section 50 below
Year 25

(Third Renewal Term)

Lease Year 26 through Lease To be determined in accordance with Section 50 below
Year 30
(Fourth Renewal Term)

50. RENEWAL OPTIONS ——

(a) Provided this Lease remains in full force and effect through and including
then current expiration date and Tenant is not in default under the terms of this Lease (beyond
any and all applicable notice and cure periods) at the time of the exercise of each of the options
herein described or as of the expiration date, Tenant shall have options fo extend the Term for
four (4) consecutive terms of five (5) years each (each a “Renewal Term,” and, respectively, the
“First Renewal Term,” the “Second Renewal Term,” the “Third Renewal Term” and the
“Fourth Renewal Term”), under the same terms, covenants and conditions contained in this
Lease other than with respect to Fixed Rent, which shall be determined as set forth below.

* (). Annual Fixed Rent for the first Renewal Term shall be equal to the lesser
of (i) $110,000.00 (i.e., $5.00 per rentable square foot of the Building per annum), or (ii) an
amount equal to $88,000.00 (i.e., $4.00 per rentable square foot of the Building per annum),
increased by the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index for the period commencing on
the Commencement Date and ending thirty (30) days prior to the Extension Notice Date (as




Market Value Assessment (2023)

Weighted
Indicated Indication of
Market Value  Weightin Market Value
Sales Comparison Approach $1,300,000 50% $650,000
Income Capitalization Approach $1,100,000 50% $550,000
Summed to: Reconciled Market Value Estimate $1,200,000

Rounded To: $1,200,000

The analysis of the data contained within this appraisal report indicates that the market value of the
leased fee interest in the subject property, as of July 25, 2023, is:

NINE HUNDRED TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS
($910,000)

The analysis of the data contained within this appraisal report indicates that the market value of the
fee simple interest in the subject property, as of July 25, 2023, is:

ONE MILLION TWO HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS
($1,200,000)

Please note that we have previously appraised the property for the Estate of Jean Gundersen. The
client was Dr. Charles A. Gundersen, who is a member of the ownership entity of the subject. The
report was transmitted on October 15, 2019, with a retrospective value date of June 10, 2019. The
value as of June 10, 2019 was estimated to be $725,000 with the property rights appraised only being
those of just the leased fee interest. At that time, the deferred maintenance was estimated to be
$13,750. This was deducted from the analysis to equate the $725,000 value estimate.

The data that was gathered, the analysis conducted, and the valuation conclusions are summarized in
the attached report of 71 pages. The estimate of value is predicated on an exposure period of 6-12
months. The subject is not under contract for sale or listed for sale, and there have been no sales of the
subject within the past three years that warrant consideration, as required by USPAP.

Respectfully submitted,
Digitay gned by John).

Galvin, MAJ

DAz en=Joha . Galvin, MAL
o=Galvin Appraisal Services, [LC,
ou, emaii=john@agvaluescom,
c=Us




Total Monthly Cost

New Lease 2024

Rent per lease
Taxes
Insurance
Easement
Cintas

Water

Total/year

Total/month

yearly doctor easement

per year
$ 110,000.00
$ 27,776.55
$ 10,582.00

$ 2,000.00
$  2,400.00

$ 152,758.55

$ 12,729.88

$ 250.00

Per the lease agreement this is the lessor of the two value
Tax bill attached

Last years Bill still out for new quotes

Savin rock easement ( this was putinto the amended leas
This tends to vary maybe a little low

To be paid directly by Habitat

Paid in April




Transfer of Ownership: Attorney evaluation

From: Lauren Lyngholm <LLyngholm@tpllp.com>

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2025 10:29 AM

To: Karraine Moody <karraine@hthncc.org>

Cc: Dale Clayton <DClayton@fpllp.com>

Subject: RE: Commercial Lease Question: Habitat for Humanity

Hi Karraine,

Reviewed the lease. Here are some thoughts:

Generally, yes. The new ownerinheritsthe lease. While the lease doesn’t explicitly go over sales of
the property, Section 47 provides that the lease is binding upon the parties, their heirs,
administrators, executors, successors and assigns.

| do want to call your attention to the term and renewal periods. It looks like the initial lease term
began in 2014 for a period of 10 years with renewal periods. The process to renew is in Section 50.
Did Habitat exercise its option to extend the term 6 months prior to the firstterm’s expiration date?
If not, it appearsthe Landlordis supposed to provide notice informing Habitat of it’s renewal option
and Habitat has to respond within 10 days to renew. It looks like no additional documentation is
required (other than the exchanged notices — which you should ensure are kept inyour records with
your copy of the lease). If that exchange did not occur, it's in Habitat’s best interest to ensure it
does before a sale of the property.

As an aside, there is an option in the lease under Section 44 to record a notice of lease on the land
records. Recording a notice benefits the tenant because it provides a public notice on the land
records to any future property owner that the tenant has a leasehold interest in the property.
Habitat may also want to consider recording a notice before the sale, as well.

Keepin mind, as it appears there is a substantial renewal option in the lease, | wouldn’t be
surprised if the new owner attempts to negotiate a new lease with you.

Let us know if you have any other questions. Thanks!

Lauren E. Lyngholm, Esq.
Associate

Phone: 860-527-0400

Direct: 860-808-4229

Email: llyngholm@fplip.com
280 Trumbull Street

Suite 2200
Hartford, CT 06103

https:/link.edgepilot.com/s/d7a7eebb/1JD7NNT gEQaCZtV7UM23Q7?u=http/iwww.fpllp.com/




IFord&Poulekas,LLP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The information contained in this message is confidential and, if addressed to a client or certain counsel, is
subject to the attorney-client or work-product privilege, and is intended only for the use of the individual or
entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received
this communication in error, please reply or notify us immediately by email or telephone, and destroy or
erase this message.

From: Karraine Moody <karraine@hfhncc.org>

Sent: Thursday, January 16, 2025 8:00 AM

To: Dale Clayton <DClayton@fpllp.com>; Lauren Lyngholm <LLyngholm@fpllp.com>
Cc: Monica Blanco <mblanco®@travelers.com>

Subject: Commercial Lease Question: Habitat for Humanity

Dale and Lauren:

See comment below. Biggest question is if the warehouse decides to sell the property; is
the new owner required to honor our lease? Here is the original lease for reference.

Lease: Although the lease does not explicitly state it, the assumption is that if there were
transfer of ownership (property is sold), the new owner must honor the terms of the lease
with the current tenant unless the lease specifically states otherwise? Essentially, the new
owner becomes the landlord and is responsible for upholding the lease terms until its
expiration date?

Any guidance would be greatly appreciated!

In partnership,

Karraine Moody| Chief Executive Officer
Habitat for Humanity North Central Connecticut
Office: 860.541.2209

Mobile: 860.712.9880

Karraine@hfhncc.org




Nest Steps:

- Karraine to provide investment details and Bloomfield Location Research/Rationale.
- Pursue lease renewal and obtain an updated legal binding lease document.




i
Loureiro

Engineering * Construction » EH&S Energy
Waste « Facility Services « Laboratory

VIA E-Mail

July 15, 2024

GEI Enterprises, LLC
8 Ashley Lane
Wallingford, CT, 06492

Attn:  Diane Bergan

RE: Environmental Representation Update
500 Cottage Grove Road, Bloomfield, CT
Commission Number: 032GE3.03

Dear Ms. Bergan:

We have prepared this letter to provide an updated representation of environmental conditions at
the former Hartford Tool & Die Company facility located at 500 Cottage Grove Road in
Bloomfield, Connecticut (hereinafter referred to as “the Site”). The Site is currently leased to
Habitat for Humanity and we understand that the tenants are interested in purchasing the property
and wish to understand the environmental condition of the Site and potential future obligations. A
previous environmental representation letter was provided in June 2013, before the property was
leased.

The Site is comprised of a 10.46-acre industrially-zoned property located in the southeast portion
of Bloomfield, Connecticut. The Site presently contains a single 22,050 square foot, two-story,
steel-frame building that was constructed in 1952 and expanded in 1977. The building formerly
housed a tool and die manufacturing facility from the time of its construction until cessation of
operations in 2005. Prior to 1952, the Site was undeveloped.

During the period from 1997 to 2011 the Site was the subject of numerous soil and groundwater
characterization investigations and remedial actions. The results of the investigations indicated
that releases of petroleum hydrocarbons (oils), chlorinated hydrocarbons (degreasing solutions),
and inorganic constituents (metals) have occurred at various locations beneath and in close
proximity to the building. Remedial actions were designed and implemented to address the
presence of soil and groundwater contamination present at the Site. In January 2013, Loureiro
Engineering Associates, Inc. (Loureiro) was retained to develop an approach to bring closure to
remaining environmental conditions at the Site. These conditions included the presence of
chlorinated hydrocarbons in soil and groundwater at concentrations that exceed regulatory
thresholds.

Loureiro Engineering Associates, Inc,
455 Massachusetts Avenue, NW #338 « Washington, D.C. 20001 « 202.251.8181 » www.Loureiro.com
AN EMPLOYEE-OWNED COMPANY
Affirmative Action / Equal Opportunity Employer



GEI Enterprises, LLC
July 15, 2024

/".\
Page 2 of 3 Lourelro

Engineering * Construction * EH&S » Energy
Wasle = Facliity Services « Laboratary

At that time, Loureiro reviewed the data from all prior characterization investigations and remedial
actions and conducted physical sampling and analysis of soil and groundwater at various locations
at the Site including those in close proximity to the building and soil vapor beneath the building.
Based on a review of the universe of data for the Site extant in 2013 we concluded that none of the
conditions present in soil, groundwater or soil vapor precluded the continued use and occupancy
of the building and that users of the building could be assured that there were no safety concemns
resulting from the environmental conditions of the Site. In November 2014, Loureiro submitted a
Form III Interim Verification which demonstrated that soil at the Site complied with applicable
soil criteria. At that time, groundwater had not achieved compliance with applicable groundwater
criteria and natural attenuation was selected to address residual groundwater impacts.

In 2023, Loureiro conducted groundwater sampling to evaluate whether groundwater conditions
supported compliance with regulatory requirements. The results of that sampling indicated that
groundwater concentrations in one area of the Site were higher in comparison to data last collected
in2013. Asa result, Loureiro conducted additional groundwater and sub-slab soil vapor sampling
to confirm there were no conditions that warranted mitigation. Although concentrations in
groundwater proximal to one portion of the building were above regulatory criteria, the sub-slab
soil vapor samples collected within the building were well below applicable regulatory criteria.
Based on these results, we conclude that none of the identified conditions require mitigation and
the continued use and occupancy of the building without modification is appropriate and there are
no safety concerns resulting from the environmental conditions of the Site under the current use.

Although none of the existing conditions pose a safety concern or preclude the purchase and/or
sale of the Site, final verification of the Site cannot be completed at this time. Based on the
concentrations of chlorinated hydrocarbons in groundwater, we believe achieving compliance with
two of the three groundwater criteria applicable to the Site within a reasonable timeframe is
unlikely. However, final verification of the Site may be possible by utilizing certain administrative
and institutional controls. One of the criteria can be addressed by having the groundwater beneath
the Site reclassitied from GA (presumed to be suitable for drinking or other domestic purposes
without treatment) to GB (may not be suitable for human consumption without treatment).
Loureiro submitted a Groundwater Reclassification Application in March 2024. The second
criteria can be addressed by recording an environmental use restriction (EUR) on a portion of the
property (see attached figure for approximate area), which would prohibit construction of a
building without appropriate vapor mitigation measures. Additional groundwater monitoring will
be needed to demonstrate compliance with groundwater criteria protective of surface water.
Cooling season sub-slab soil vapor samples will also be needed. Loureiro estimates that the Site
could be fully verified within 12-15 months of approval of the Groundwater Reclassification
Application,

Following verification, the owner will be responsible for completing an annual EUR inspection
and retaining a licensed environmental professional (LEP) to complete EUR inspections every five
years. The 5-year LEP inspection reports are submitted to CT DEEP to document that the



GEI Enterprises, LLC
July 15, 2024

/.\
Page 3 of 3 Lourelr O

Engineering ¢ Construction » EH&S « Energy
Waste * Facility Services « Laboratory

conditions of the EUR have been met, namely, that no buildings have been constructed in the EUR
area.

Should GEI Enterprises, LLC or the tenant have any questions regarding property transfer under
the Transfer Act, verification of the property, or any of the environmental conditions at the
property, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

LOUREIRO ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

&7%% ﬁw G. %‘tw%f

Sarah Burkhalter-Sweeney Karen A. Goldenberg, L.E.P.
Project Manager Senior Technical Associate
860-410-2966 860-410-3043

Attachment



YIS ID\SIMaNo0g - 0¥ 2Awg %&NDJ\DPIJWDWE\D\:A

gxw'emwa‘smnsu‘ssm -

B

009:T >nmde_mcczm:.nmenmn odois9sn i@aAlas [p]

1= 1 Mo (BT ..m..:wwwmuEr._mSNlacto\memE.\muu_twm...._wummhu....._nm.:cov_._.ouuuu\.:unz; tanmas 3]
(/n 1 - ﬂﬂﬂ
(/enor) 1 0zt 08 ot o] at

/Wod'siboe .a;c.nowBu.ﬂ_maaz.Em_uémnc.m_u.awuu.ﬁb:mnﬁ: ol (EZ0Z/E/L PIEpdn) Jag suohesyisser) sajem asepns [q]
\Eou.m,mEm.a:__.%uuﬁ..agmn_?s.Em?_._uno.m_m.nvvu.«u\...u&u; ol (€202/61/21 Pa1epdn) 1den [P31ed Meg 3nopaauue] [e]
1/6n ot} Z -
(/60 000°T) € -

Pigby -
(pa1ejodiajuy) BWnig 50A0 J3rempuncin

(payejodiaqu) asepng AAswonumeq £zoz yarey
(pa3ejodiaguy) BHD YSY BA0QY eaay awnyg
Wiod Lussg Ly ]

S2dniend Jajempunosn

S$epaY Jo4 pasodeuy eay Jo Smpey y-pos1” "

§5e22Y Joj pasadolyg Rauy
[q] saimesy J3CM ICLNG e

le] paseq ous [ |
s3injeay eseg
anIoa

(000'9:T)
INoAET [Poaey

oor ooz ) ooz

Jareq|
Jodex ajeudosdde|

(o00'vz:1)
depy eauy

S UNODI4
n
c
F:l
]
4
;| 2
3
33l ¢
5 a
2 RZ| o
m & x
i 1. -
0 oA e
o sz| S
MMWW =
Vawl H
[ >
aizg| &
3%83) 2
-
FHEF] -
- &F| X
, m
f 2% o
20| o
N“ 2
i"| 2
s
-
[=]
2
(=]
g &4l
SHERE
Nmhw | o
S B B
i & 2
7. 55
8l
mww
nm%m g
27 mwm
R

ZTEH'LIL D98 ed -
¥R ‘AL
UL ‘sepossy b

z




BOARD NOMINATION



Habitat

for Humanity®
North Central Connecticut

Brian Summers Board Nomination Outline

Brian started CNC Mastercam at the age of 22. He was the
Chairman and Founder of Mastercam until 2023 when he sold the
company. Brian currently sits on the Board as President, until
2026.

Brian and his wife Heather live at 74 Barington Way in
Glastonbury.

Brian's cell phone number is 860 463-6499



DEVELOPMENT



Habitat

for Humanity®
North Central Connecticut

GOLF OUTING SUPPORT NEEDED 2025

To help support the October 20, 2025 golf outing the following is needed:

e Sponsorship referrals
e Invite your company to be a sponsor
* Donation of Gift Cards of $50 or more for giveaways

e Ifyou play, it would be great if you had a foursome



OPERATIONS
UPDATE



550 Burnside Ave, East Hartford, CT Build Schedule
L Planning/Acquisition ]

Jan ___JFeb  [Mar  Japr |May S JAve  Tseot ot INov Dec

Spring 2022 - Finalize sale of property to Habitat, attend Council Meetings and Public Hearings
Summer/Fall 2022 - Site plans & engineering details created, P&Z approval

AN, o (Bab iR T —— e T e S T e e
Jan 'x‘s:.:.u"i E bees i StV HF;‘; n’.‘.’-"&-l‘fh " 3 A,.j .:“f".:" s e 32 | t“ ok 4 S AN SR A
Winter hold - no work

| |

inter 2024 - Sit work on hold through Winter, o work completed.




Winter 2026 - Homeowners close and move-inl



